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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt Ltd</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Notes forming part of the financial statements<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note 3 Share capital<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p />As at 31 March, 2022<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />As at 31 March, 2021<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(a) Authorised<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Equity shares of Rs.10 each<p /></td><td><p />                               500.00 <p /></td><td><p />                            5,000.00 <p /></td><td><p />                         500.00 <p /></td><td><p />               5,000.00 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid<p /></td><td><p />                               261.08 <p /></td><td><p />                            2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p />                         261.08 <p /></td><td><p />               2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total<p /></td><td><p />                     261.08 <p /></td><td><p />                  2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p />                 261.08 <p /></td><td><p />         2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p />As at 31 March, 2022<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />As at 31 March, 2021<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period<p /></td><td><p />                               261.08 <p /></td><td><p />                            2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p />                         261.08 <p /></td><td><p />               2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Add: Shares issued during the period<p /></td><td><p />                                        -   <p /></td><td><p />                                        -   <p /></td><td><p />                                   -   <p /></td><td><p />                            -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Less: Shares bought back during the period<p /></td><td><p />                                        -   <p /></td><td><p />                                        -   <p /></td><td><p />                                   -   <p /></td><td><p />                            -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Shares outstanding at the end of the period<p /></td><td><p />                     261.08 <p /></td><td><p />                  2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p />                         261.08 <p /></td><td><p />               2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iv) Shares in the Company held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares in the Company<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> As at 31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> As at 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> % of Holding <p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> % of Holding <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Mr. Saahil Murarka<p /></td><td><p />                               133.15 <p /></td><td><p />51.00%<p /></td><td><p />                         133.15 <p /></td><td><p />51.00%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Batlivala & Karani Resources Management Pvt Ltd.<p /></td><td><p />                               127.93 <p /></td><td><p />49.00%<p /></td><td><p />                         127.93 <p /></td><td><p />49.00%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />NOTE 1A. SHARES HELD BY PROMOTORS<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> As at 31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> As at 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of Promoter<p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> % of Holding <p /></td><td><p />% change during the year<p /></td><td><p /> Number of shares <p /></td><td><p /> % of Holding <p /></td><td><p />% change during the year<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Mr. Saahil Murarka<p /></td><td><p />                               133.15 <p /></td><td><p />51.00%<p /></td><td><p />0%<p /></td><td><p />                  133.15 <p /></td><td><p />51.00%<p /></td><td><p />0%<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />NOTE- 1B. STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current Reporting Period<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period<p /></td><td><p />Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period error<p /></td><td><p />Related Balance at the beiginning of the current reporting periuod<p /></td><td><p />Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year<p /></td><td><p />Balance at the end of the current reporting period<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />                                                                                              2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p />                             -   <p /></td><td><p />                             -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p />         2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Previous reporting Period<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period<p /></td><td><p />Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period error<p /></td><td><p />Related Balance at the beiginning of the current reporting periuod<p /></td><td><p />Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year<p /></td><td><p />Balance at the end of the current reporting period<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />                                                                                              2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p />                             -   <p /></td><td><p />                             -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p />         2,610.79 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Rights, preferences and restriction attached to equity shares<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. No dividend has been proposed by the board of directors for the year.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) Shares in the company held by the holding company<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The company is not a subsidiary to any other company.<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i.) The Company has not alloted any shares as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash within a period of 5 years preceeding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii.) The Company has not alloted any shares as fully paid up by way of bonus shares within a period of 5 years preceeding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii.)  The Company has not bought back any shares within a period of 5 years preceeding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Note 4 Reserves and surplus </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> (Amount in Rs. Lakh) <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> As at 31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td><p /> As at 31 March, 2021 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(a) Securities premium account<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Opening balance<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                                1,236.21 <p /></td><td><p />                        1,236.21 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Add : Premium on shares issued during the year<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                                         -   <p /></td><td><p />                                 -   <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Less : Utilised during the year<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                                         -   <p /></td><td><p />                                 -   <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Closing balance<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p />                              1,236.21 <p /></td><td><p />                      1,236.21 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(b) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Opening balance<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                                4,799.11 <p /></td><td><p />                        3,291.16 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                                3,021.02 <p /></td><td><p />                        1,507.95 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Less:-Provision for Taxation of earlier years<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p />                                         -   <p /></td><td><p />                                 -   <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Closing balance<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p />                              7,820.12 <p /></td><td><p />                      4,799.11 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total (a+b)<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                              9,056.33 <p /></td><td><p />                      6,035.31 <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />Notes forming part of the financial statements<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note  1 Corporate Information<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd. was incorporated on May 19, 1998 and engaged in Stock broking, Merchant Banking, Mutual Fund ditribution and Investment Advisory services beisdes holding investment in Subsidaries and Associates. The group business consists of finacial services, distribution of financial products and insurance busniess carried out by seperate subsidaries & associates. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note 2 Significant accounting policies <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and certain other retirement benefits other than gratuity to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />b)   Use of Estimates<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Differences between actual and estimates are recognized in the period in which the result are known or are materialised.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />c) Investments<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />d)      Tangible Fixed Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Tangible Fixed Assets have been stated at actual cost of acquisition or constructions, including incidental expenses. They are stated at historical cost. Actual cost is inclusive of installation cost, freight, duties, taxes, financing cost and other incidental expenses but net of Cenvat/GST.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />e)      Impairment of Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of any assets and/or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each assets and/or cash generating units to the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use are determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />f)      Intangible Assets & Amortization<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortization.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) These intangible assets are amortized as below:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Stock Exchange Membership Card : 10 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Computer Software : 3 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Website: 5 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />g)    Depreciation <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Tangible Assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. <br></br><br></br>Depreciation is provided on tangible asset on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><br></br>Management’s estimates of the useful lives of certain assets are as follows: <br></br><br></br>a. Air Conditioners: 15 years<br></br>b. Electrical Appliances: 15 years<br></br>c. Furniture and Fixtures: 15 years<br></br>d. Art and Paintings: 15 years<br></br><br></br>For the above class of assets, based on internal assessment, management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the asset would be used.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Individual Assets costing less then Rs.5,000/- have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />h)    Retirement Benefits<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i)   Gratuity:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. However, the company through its Trust has taken a policy with LIC/Birla Sun Life to cover the gratuity liability of the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC/Birla Sun Life is provided for as liability in the books.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii)  Provident Fund:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is charged against revenue on accrual basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) Leave Encashment:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Company does not extend's the benefit of leave encashment to its employees while in service as well as on retirement from service of the company.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i)    Revenue Recognition<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />j)  Miscellaneous Expenditure<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Miscellaneous expenditure represents only deferred revenue expenses. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Deferred revenue expenditure is written off over the period of benefit, whenever the exact period of benefit can be determined. Other deferred revenue expenditures, where period of benefit cannot be exactly determined, are written off over a period of 5 to 10 years.  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />k)   Provisions & Contingences<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjust to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contigent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />l)   Taxes on Income <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Current Tax: - Provision for Current Tax is computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any excess or shortfall in the provisioon of the taxation of earlier years is adjusted with the Reserve & Surplus.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with Accounting standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” issued by, The Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses comprise of both current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) MAT Credit Entitlement :-Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />m)   Earning Per Share<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />n)  Foreign Exchange Transactions<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All monetary items, which comprises of Monetary Assets and Monetary Liabilities are translated at the year end at the closing rates prevailing on the last day of the year. Any foreign exchange gain or loss arising from the settlement of transaction or translation of monetary items at the year end is recognized as income and expense, as the case may be, for the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Non – monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non – monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />o) Leases<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value or present value of the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases.  Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />p) CENVAT <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Cenvat benefit is accounted by reducing the purchase cost of Services and Fixed Assets for which Cenvat credit is available as per the Cenvat Credit Rules as amended from time to time.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Cenvat Credit is availed only on payment basis and is adjusted against the Service Tax liability. No Cenvat is availed where payment is outstanding. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) The credit of Cenvat, which is not availed in the current financial year is carried forward and availed in the subsequent year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Q) Cash & Cash Equivalents <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with bank in current account (other than earmarked), fixed  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Deposits with bank (free from any encumbrances), cheques on hand and balances in foreign currency and prepaid cards.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />R) Segments<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conirmity with the accounting policies adopted for the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />company. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilites are indentified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />operating activities of the segments. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relates to the company as a whole<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />and are not allocable to segments on a resonable basis, are included under "unallocated". <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <p>  </p><table><tbody><tr><td><p />Note 1 Corporate Information<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd. was incorporated on May 19, 1998 and engaged in Stock broking, Merchant Banking, Mutual Fund ditribution and Investment Advisory services beisdes holding investment in Subsidaries and Associates. The group business consists of finacial services, distribution of financial products and insurance busniess carried out by seperate subsidaries & associates. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p />
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />Notes forming part of the financial statements<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note  1 Corporate Information<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd. was incorporated on May 19, 1998 and engaged in Stock broking, Merchant Banking, Mutual Fund ditribution and Investment Advisory services beisdes holding investment in Subsidaries and Associates. The group business consists of finacial services, distribution of financial products and insurance busniess carried out by seperate subsidaries & associates. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note 2 Significant accounting policies <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and certain other retirement benefits other than gratuity to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />b)   Use of Estimates<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Differences between actual and estimates are recognized in the period in which the result are known or are materialised.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />c) Investments<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />d)      Tangible Fixed Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Tangible Fixed Assets have been stated at actual cost of acquisition or constructions, including incidental expenses. They are stated at historical cost. Actual cost is inclusive of installation cost, freight, duties, taxes, financing cost and other incidental expenses but net of Cenvat/GST.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />e)      Impairment of Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of any assets and/or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each assets and/or cash generating units to the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use are determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />f)      Intangible Assets & Amortization<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortization.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) These intangible assets are amortized as below:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Stock Exchange Membership Card : 10 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Computer Software : 3 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Website: 5 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />g)    Depreciation <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Tangible Assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. <br></br><br></br>Depreciation is provided on tangible asset on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><br></br>Management’s estimates of the useful lives of certain assets are as follows: <br></br><br></br>a. Air Conditioners: 15 years<br></br>b. Electrical Appliances: 15 years<br></br>c. Furniture and Fixtures: 15 years<br></br>d. Art and Paintings: 15 years<br></br><br></br>For the above class of assets, based on internal assessment, management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the asset would be used.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Individual Assets costing less then Rs.5,000/- have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />h)    Retirement Benefits<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i)   Gratuity:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. However, the company through its Trust has taken a policy with LIC/Birla Sun Life to cover the gratuity liability of the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC/Birla Sun Life is provided for as liability in the books.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii)  Provident Fund:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is charged against revenue on accrual basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) Leave Encashment:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Company does not extend's the benefit of leave encashment to its employees while in service as well as on retirement from service of the company.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i)    Revenue Recognition<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />j)  Miscellaneous Expenditure<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Miscellaneous expenditure represents only deferred revenue expenses. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Deferred revenue expenditure is written off over the period of benefit, whenever the exact period of benefit can be determined. Other deferred revenue expenditures, where period of benefit cannot be exactly determined, are written off over a period of 5 to 10 years.  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />k)   Provisions & Contingences<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjust to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contigent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />l)   Taxes on Income <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Current Tax: - Provision for Current Tax is computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any excess or shortfall in the provisioon of the taxation of earlier years is adjusted with the Reserve & Surplus.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with Accounting standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” issued by, The Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses comprise of both current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) MAT Credit Entitlement :-Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />m)   Earning Per Share<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />n)  Foreign Exchange Transactions<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All monetary items, which comprises of Monetary Assets and Monetary Liabilities are translated at the year end at the closing rates prevailing on the last day of the year. Any foreign exchange gain or loss arising from the settlement of transaction or translation of monetary items at the year end is recognized as income and expense, as the case may be, for the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Non – monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non – monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />o) Leases<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value or present value of the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases.  Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />p) CENVAT <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Cenvat benefit is accounted by reducing the purchase cost of Services and Fixed Assets for which Cenvat credit is available as per the Cenvat Credit Rules as amended from time to time.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Cenvat Credit is availed only on payment basis and is adjusted against the Service Tax liability. No Cenvat is availed where payment is outstanding. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) The credit of Cenvat, which is not availed in the current financial year is carried forward and availed in the subsequent year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Q) Cash & Cash Equivalents <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with bank in current account (other than earmarked), fixed  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Deposits with bank (free from any encumbrances), cheques on hand and balances in foreign currency and prepaid cards.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />R) Segments<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conirmity with the accounting policies adopted for the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />company. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilites are indentified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />operating activities of the segments. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relates to the company as a whole<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />and are not allocable to segments on a resonable basis, are included under "unallocated". <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p />
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Note 21 Employee benefits expense</p></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2021 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Salaries, Bonus & Allowances<p /></td><td><p />                  5,236.30 <p /></td><td><p />                        4,264.85 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Gratuity & Leave Encashments <p /></td><td><p />                       82.74 <p /></td><td><p />                            63.20 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Contribution to Employee's Provident Fund (Refer note 34)<p /></td><td><p />                       43.51 <p /></td><td><p />                            45.52 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Staff Welfare Expenses<p /></td><td><p />                       19.90 <p /></td><td><p />                              9.60 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Director Salary<p /></td><td><p />                     276.77 <p /></td><td><p />                          295.81 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total<p /></td><td><p />                 5,659.22 <p /></td><td><p />                      4,678.98 <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Note 19 Revenue from operations</p></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> (Amount in Rs. Lakh) <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2021 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Revenue from Operations<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Brokerage (Equity & Mutual Funds)<p /></td><td><p />                 10,380.19 <p /></td><td><p />                        8,182.29 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(Includes TDS of Rs. In Lakh 96.46/-, P.Y. Rs. In Lakh 38.42/-)<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Brokerage from Merchant Banking (Gross)<p /></td><td><p />                     142.93 <p /></td><td><p />                          451.51 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(Includes TDS of Rs in Lakh 11.71/-, P.Y. Rs. In Lakh 33.43/-)<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Professional Fees Received<p /></td><td><p />                       50.06 <p /></td><td><p />                            44.00 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(Includes TDS of Rs in Lakh 3.71/-, P.Y. Rs. In Lakh 3.41/-)<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Business Support Service Fees (Export Income)<p /></td><td><p />                     286.85 <p /></td><td><p />                          335.50 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total<p /></td><td><p />               10,860.03 <p /></td><td><p />                      9,013.30 <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 i)    Revenue Recognition


All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.
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 BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES (I) PRIVATE LIMITED




Calculation of Net Profit for the purpose of Corporate Social Responsibility













 

Particulars

2020-2021        (Amt in Rs.)

2019-2020        (Amt in Rs.)

2018-2019        (Amt in Rs.)


 

Net Profit Before Tax as Per Financial Statements

212,328,741

23,225,428

37,483,336


 

Bounties/subsidies received from any Government, or any public authority*(* To be deducted in case Central Government so directs)

 

 




Deduct

(a) profits, by way of premium on shares or debentures of the company, which are issued or sold by the company; 

 

 

 


Deduct

(b) profits on sales by the company of forfeited shares; 

 

 

 


Deduct

(c) profits of a capital nature including profits from the sale of the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company or of any part thereof; 

33,785,969

9,212,871

14,629,252


Deduct

(d) profits from the sale of any immovable property or fixed assets  of a capital nature comprised in the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company, unless the business of the company consists, whether wholly or partly, of buying and selling any such property or assets:   Provided that where the amount for which any fixed asset is sold exceeds the written-down value thereof, credit shall be given for so much of the excess as is not higher than the difference between the original cost of that fixed asset and its written down value;

 

 




Deduct

(e) any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity reserves including surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value. 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 

Expenses already deducted while arriving Net Profit

 

 

 


 

(a) all the usual working charges;

 

 

 


 

(b) directors' remuneration;

 

 

 


 

(c) bonus or commission paid or payable to any member of the company's staff, or to any engineer, technician or person employed or engaged by the company, whether on a whole-time or on a part-time basis;

 

 

 


 

(d) any tax notified by the Central Government as being in the nature of a tax on excess or abnormal profits;

 

 

 


 

(e) any tax on business profits imposed for special reasons or in special circumstances and notified by the Central Government in this behalf;

 

 

 


 

(f) interest on debentures issued by the company;

 

 

 


 

(g) interest on mortgages executed by the company and on loans and advances secured by a charge on its fixed or floating assets;

 

 

 


 

(h) interest on unsecured loans and advances;

 

 

 


 

(i) expenses on repairs, whether to immovable or to movable property, provided the repairs are not of a capital nature;

 

 

 


 

(j) outgoings inclusive of contributions made under section 181;

 

 

 


 

(k) depreciation to the extent specified in section 123;

 

 

 


 

(l) the excess of expenditure over income, which had arisen in computing the net profits in accordance with this section in any year which begins at or after the commencement of this Act, in so far as such excess has not been deducted in any subsequent year preceding the year in respect of which the net profits have to be ascertained;

 

 

 


 

(m) any compensation or damages to be paid in virtue of any legal liability including a liability arising from a breach of contract; 

 

 

 


 

(n) any sum paid by way of insurance against the risk of meeting any liability such as is referred to in clause (m);

 

 

 


 

(o) debts considered bad and written off or adjusted during the year of account.

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


Add

(a) income-tax and super-tax payable by the company under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), or any other tax on the income of the company not falling under clauses (d) and (e) of sub-section (4); 

 

 

 


Add

(b) any compensation, damages or payments made voluntarily, that is to say, otherwise than in virtue of a liability such as is referred to in clause (m) of sub-section (4);

 

 

 


Add

(c) loss of a capital nature including loss on sale of the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company or of any part thereof not including any excess of the written-down value of any asset which is sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed over its sale proceeds or its scrap value;

17,558,617

34,316,740

13,239,899


Add

(d) any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity reserves including surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value. 

 

 




Add

Interest on income/ service tax - paid

 

 

 


Deduct

Interest on income/service tax - received

 

 

 


 

Grand Total

196101389

48329297

36093983















Average Net Profit of the Last Three Years 





93,508,223















Minimum amount to be spent on CSR Activities





1870165
 212329000
 196101000
 BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES (I) PRIVATE LIMITED




Calculation of Net Profit for the purpose of Corporate Social Responsibility













 

Particulars

2020-2021        (Amt in Rs.)

2019-2020        (Amt in Rs.)

2018-2019        (Amt in Rs.)


 

Net Profit Before Tax as Per Financial Statements

212,328,741

23,225,428

37,483,336


 

Bounties/subsidies received from any Government, or any public authority*(* To be deducted in case Central Government so directs)

 

 




Deduct

(a) profits, by way of premium on shares or debentures of the company, which are issued or sold by the company; 

 

 

 


Deduct

(b) profits on sales by the company of forfeited shares; 

 

 

 


Deduct

(c) profits of a capital nature including profits from the sale of the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company or of any part thereof; 

33,785,969

9,212,871

14,629,252


Deduct

(d) profits from the sale of any immovable property or fixed assets  of a capital nature comprised in the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company, unless the business of the company consists, whether wholly or partly, of buying and selling any such property or assets:   Provided that where the amount for which any fixed asset is sold exceeds the written-down value thereof, credit shall be given for so much of the excess as is not higher than the difference between the original cost of that fixed asset and its written down value;

 

 




Deduct

(e) any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity reserves including surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value. 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 

Expenses already deducted while arriving Net Profit

 

 

 


 

(a) all the usual working charges;

 

 

 


 

(b) directors' remuneration;

 

 

 


 

(c) bonus or commission paid or payable to any member of the company's staff, or to any engineer, technician or person employed or engaged by the company, whether on a whole-time or on a part-time basis;

 

 

 


 

(d) any tax notified by the Central Government as being in the nature of a tax on excess or abnormal profits;

 

 

 


 

(e) any tax on business profits imposed for special reasons or in special circumstances and notified by the Central Government in this behalf;

 

 

 


 

(f) interest on debentures issued by the company;

 

 

 


 

(g) interest on mortgages executed by the company and on loans and advances secured by a charge on its fixed or floating assets;

 

 

 


 

(h) interest on unsecured loans and advances;

 

 

 


 

(i) expenses on repairs, whether to immovable or to movable property, provided the repairs are not of a capital nature;

 

 

 


 

(j) outgoings inclusive of contributions made under section 181;

 

 

 


 

(k) depreciation to the extent specified in section 123;

 

 

 


 

(l) the excess of expenditure over income, which had arisen in computing the net profits in accordance with this section in any year which begins at or after the commencement of this Act, in so far as such excess has not been deducted in any subsequent year preceding the year in respect of which the net profits have to be ascertained;

 

 

 


 

(m) any compensation or damages to be paid in virtue of any legal liability including a liability arising from a breach of contract; 

 

 

 


 

(n) any sum paid by way of insurance against the risk of meeting any liability such as is referred to in clause (m);

 

 

 


 

(o) debts considered bad and written off or adjusted during the year of account.

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


Add

(a) income-tax and super-tax payable by the company under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), or any other tax on the income of the company not falling under clauses (d) and (e) of sub-section (4); 

 

 

 


Add

(b) any compensation, damages or payments made voluntarily, that is to say, otherwise than in virtue of a liability such as is referred to in clause (m) of sub-section (4);

 

 

 


Add

(c) loss of a capital nature including loss on sale of the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company or of any part thereof not including any excess of the written-down value of any asset which is sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed over its sale proceeds or its scrap value;

17,558,617

34,316,740

13,239,899


Add

(d) any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity reserves including surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value. 

 

 




Add

Interest on income/ service tax - paid

 

 

 


Deduct

Interest on income/service tax - received

 

 

 


 

Grand Total

196101389

48329297

36093983















Average Net Profit of the Last Three Years 





93,508,223















Minimum amount to be spent on CSR Activities





1870165
 23225000
 48329000
 BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES (I) PRIVATE LIMITED




Calculation of Net Profit for the purpose of Corporate Social Responsibility













 

Particulars

2020-2021        (Amt in Rs.)

2019-2020        (Amt in Rs.)

2018-2019        (Amt in Rs.)


 

Net Profit Before Tax as Per Financial Statements

212,328,741

23,225,428

37,483,336


 

Bounties/subsidies received from any Government, or any public authority*(* To be deducted in case Central Government so directs)

 

 




Deduct

(a) profits, by way of premium on shares or debentures of the company, which are issued or sold by the company; 

 

 

 


Deduct

(b) profits on sales by the company of forfeited shares; 

 

 

 


Deduct

(c) profits of a capital nature including profits from the sale of the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company or of any part thereof; 

33,785,969

9,212,871

14,629,252


Deduct

(d) profits from the sale of any immovable property or fixed assets  of a capital nature comprised in the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company, unless the business of the company consists, whether wholly or partly, of buying and selling any such property or assets:   Provided that where the amount for which any fixed asset is sold exceeds the written-down value thereof, credit shall be given for so much of the excess as is not higher than the difference between the original cost of that fixed asset and its written down value;

 

 




Deduct

(e) any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity reserves including surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value. 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 

Expenses already deducted while arriving Net Profit

 

 

 


 

(a) all the usual working charges;

 

 

 


 

(b) directors' remuneration;

 

 

 


 

(c) bonus or commission paid or payable to any member of the company's staff, or to any engineer, technician or person employed or engaged by the company, whether on a whole-time or on a part-time basis;

 

 

 


 

(d) any tax notified by the Central Government as being in the nature of a tax on excess or abnormal profits;

 

 

 


 

(e) any tax on business profits imposed for special reasons or in special circumstances and notified by the Central Government in this behalf;

 

 

 


 

(f) interest on debentures issued by the company;

 

 

 


 

(g) interest on mortgages executed by the company and on loans and advances secured by a charge on its fixed or floating assets;

 

 

 


 

(h) interest on unsecured loans and advances;

 

 

 


 

(i) expenses on repairs, whether to immovable or to movable property, provided the repairs are not of a capital nature;

 

 

 


 

(j) outgoings inclusive of contributions made under section 181;

 

 

 


 

(k) depreciation to the extent specified in section 123;

 

 

 


 

(l) the excess of expenditure over income, which had arisen in computing the net profits in accordance with this section in any year which begins at or after the commencement of this Act, in so far as such excess has not been deducted in any subsequent year preceding the year in respect of which the net profits have to be ascertained;

 

 

 


 

(m) any compensation or damages to be paid in virtue of any legal liability including a liability arising from a breach of contract; 

 

 

 


 

(n) any sum paid by way of insurance against the risk of meeting any liability such as is referred to in clause (m);

 

 

 


 

(o) debts considered bad and written off or adjusted during the year of account.

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


Add

(a) income-tax and super-tax payable by the company under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), or any other tax on the income of the company not falling under clauses (d) and (e) of sub-section (4); 

 

 

 


Add

(b) any compensation, damages or payments made voluntarily, that is to say, otherwise than in virtue of a liability such as is referred to in clause (m) of sub-section (4);

 

 

 


Add

(c) loss of a capital nature including loss on sale of the undertaking or any of the undertakings of the company or of any part thereof not including any excess of the written-down value of any asset which is sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed over its sale proceeds or its scrap value;

17,558,617

34,316,740

13,239,899


Add

(d) any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity reserves including surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value. 

 

 




Add

Interest on income/ service tax - paid

 

 

 


Deduct

Interest on income/service tax - received

 

 

 


 

Grand Total

196101389

48329297

36093983















Average Net Profit of the Last Three Years 





93,508,223















Minimum amount to be spent on CSR Activities





1870165
 37483000
 36094000
 <p>N.A</p>
 true
 <p>DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES</p><p>&nbsp;</p><p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 18,70,165/- (Rupees Eighteen Lakhs Seventy Thousand One Hundred Sixty five only) for the financial year 2021-22. However, during the financial year 2021-22, company has paid to Akshaya Patra Foundations, Mahan Trust and others Rs- 54,18,000&nbsp; for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also for Medical, Environmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p>&nbsp;</p><p>&nbsp;</p>
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<p>INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT</p><p>To the Members of </p><p>BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED</p><p> </p><p>Opinion</p><p /><p />We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.<p /><p>Basis for Opinion </p><p>We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.</p><p>Key Audit Matters </p><p>Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.</p><p>Other Information</p><p>The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of the Auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.</p><p>Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements</p><p>The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. </p><p>In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. </p><p>Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.</p><p>Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements</p><p>Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.</p><p>As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: </p><p>• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.</p><p>• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. </p><p>• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors. </p><p>• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. </p><p>• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the Independent Auditor's Report, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. </p><p>We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. </p><p>We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. </p><p>From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.</p><p>Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements</p><p>As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.</p><p>As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: </p>

<p />
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
<p /><p />
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
<p /><p />
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
<p /><p />
In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
<p /><p />
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
<p /><p />
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
<p /><p />
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
<p><p> </p>

<p />
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
<p /><p> </p><p />
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
<p /><p> </p><p />
There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
<p /><p> </p><p />
The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
<p /><p> </p><p />
The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
<p /><p> </p><p />
Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 
<p /><p> </p><p />
The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><br></br><p /><p>For AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.</p><p>Chartered Accountants</p><p />F. R. No. 317224E</p><p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p />Place: Mumbai SAKET SANGANERIA, FCA<p /><p>Date: 2nd September 2022 Partner</p>












<p>C.A. M No. 300679</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p />Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 22300679AYHZHS1966<p /><p /><p> </p><p>ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT</p><p /><p />[Referred to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED]<p /><p /><p />The Annexure referred to in the Independent auditor’s report to the members of BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended as on March 31, 2022. We report that: - <p /><p />

<p />
Fixed Assets
<p /><p />

<p />
The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.
<p /><p />
The management at reasonable intervals has physically verified the Fixed Assets and as such there was no material discrepancies noticed at the time of verification.
<p /><p />
According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties, are held in the name of the Company.
<p /><p />
The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.
<p /><p />
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no such proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
<p /><p />

<p />
Inventories
<p /><p /><p>The company is not carrying on any trading or manufacturing activity. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2017 is not applicable to the company.</p><p /><p />
Granting of Loans to certain Parties 
<p /><p> </p>


<p />
The company has granted loan to three parties covered in the register maintained u/s.189 of the Companies Act, 2013 of Rs.7,15,000/- having maximum outstanding of Rs.1,97,10,000/- during the year and outstanding of Rs.1,97,10,000/- as on 31st March 2022.
<p /><p />
The loan granted is interest free and the repayment of the principal amount is generally regular.
<p /><p />
The reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal amount of the loans granted.
<p />

<p />
The Company has not granted loans to directors and the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or guarantee or security provided to the parties covered under Section 186.
<p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p />
Acceptance of Deposits
<p /><p>In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits in contravention of Directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under, where applicable. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.</p><p /><p />
Maintenance of Cost Records
<p /><p /><p>Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any product of the company.</p><p /><p />
Deposit of Statutory Dues
<p /><p />


<p />
As per the records verified by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing statutory dues involving Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service tax, Cess and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. Also, scrutiny of the records revealed no dues in respect of Investor Education and Protection Fund, and Wealth Tax. There were no undisputed statutory dues remaining outstanding as on 31st March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. 
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanation given to us by the company, there are no cases of non-deposit of disputed dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and Cess with appropriate authorities. 
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanations given to us no amount was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules there under.
<p /><p />

<p />
The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
<p /><p /><p />
Based on the records maintained, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayments of the dues to the Banks. The Company has neither issued any debentures nor has borrowed from any Financial Institution (excluding banks), Government or dues to debenture holders.
<p /><p />

<p />
The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender and also not raised fund for short term period.
<p /><p />
Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained
<p /><p />
No funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes
<p /><p />
The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
<p /><p />
The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
<p /><p /><p> </p><p />

<p />


<p />
The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument). The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
<p /><p />
The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable.
<p /><p />

<p />
a. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
<p />

<p />
There is no such report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;
<p /><p />
There are no such whistle-blower complaints received which auditor has to consider.
<p /><p />

<p />
The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clauses 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
<p /><p /><p />
Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the clause of internal audit system is not applicable in accordance with its size and business activities. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
<p /><p /><p />
The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
<p /><p /><p />
The company has not incurred cash loss in current financial year as well in immediately preceding financial year.
<p /><p /><p />
There has been no resignation of the previous statutory auditors during the year.
<p /><p /><p />
On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
<p /><p /><p />
(a) There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub-section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. 
<p /><p>(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of Companies Act. </p><p /><p />
There are no qualifications or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors of the subsidiary companies in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports hence this clause is not applicable to the company. <br></br><br></br><p /><p><p>For AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.</p><p>Chartered Accountants</p><p />F. R. No. 317224E</p><p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p />Place: Mumbai SAKET SANGANERIA, FCA<p /><p>Date: 2nd September 2021 Partner</p><p>C.A. M No. 300679</p><p /><p> </p><p />Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 22300679AYHZHS1966<p /><p /><p> </p><p /><p>ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT</p><p /><p>[Referred to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED]</p><p /><p>Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)</p><p /><p>We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED ('the Company') as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.</p><p /><p>Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls</p><p>The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p /><p>Auditors’ Responsibility</p><p>Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence I/we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.</p><p /><p>Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting</p><p /><p>A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that </p>

<p />
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
<p /><p />
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
<p /><p />
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
<p /><p /><p>Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting</p><p /><p>Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.</p><p /><p>Opinion</p><p>In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of the internal control stated in the Guidance note on the Audit of the Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.</p><p><p> </p><p> </p><p>For AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.</p><p>Chartered Accountants</p><p />F. R. No. 317224E</p><p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p />Place: Mumbai SAKET SANGANERIA, FCA<p /><p>Date: 2nd September 2022 Partner</p><p>C.A. M No. 300679</p><p /><p> </p><p />Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 22300679AYHZHS1966<p /><p /><p> </p>
 true
 false
 Fixed Assets



The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.


The management at reasonable intervals has physically verified the Fixed Assets and as such there was no material discrepancies noticed at the time of verification.


According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties, are held in the name of the Company.


The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.


In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no such proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

The management at reasonable intervals has physically verified the Fixed Assets and as such there was no material discrepancies noticed at the time of verification.


According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties, are held in the name of the Company.


The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.


In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no such proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
 The management at reasonable intervals has physically verified the Fixed Assets and as such there was no material discrepancies noticed at the time of verification.
 According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties, are held in the name of the Company.
 Inventories



The company is not carrying on any trading or manufacturing activity. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2017 is not applicable to the company.
 Granting of Loans to certain Parties 
 



The company has granted loan to three parties covered in the register maintained u/s.189 of the Companies Act, 2013 of Rs.7,15,000/- having maximum outstanding of Rs.1,97,10,000/- during the year and outstanding of Rs.1,97,10,000/- as on 31st March 2022.


The loan granted is interest free and the repayment of the principal amount is generally regular.


The reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal amount of the loans granted.
 The company has granted loan to three parties covered in the register maintained u/s.189 of the Companies Act, 2013 of Rs.7,15,000/- having maximum outstanding of Rs.1,97,10,000/- during the year and outstanding of Rs.1,97,10,000/- as on 31st March 2022.

The loan granted is interest free and the repayment of the principal amount is generally regular.


The reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal amount of the loans granted.
 The Company has not granted loans to directors and the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or guarantee or security provided to the parties covered under Section 186.
 Acceptance of Deposits


In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits in contravention of Directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under, where applicable. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.
 Maintenance of Cost Records



Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any product of the company.
 Deposit of Statutory Dues
<p />


<p />
As per the records verified by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing statutory dues involving Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service tax, Cess and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. Also, scrutiny of the records revealed no dues in respect of Investor Education and Protection Fund, and Wealth Tax. There were no undisputed statutory dues remaining outstanding as on 31st March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. 
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanation given to us by the company, there are no cases of non-deposit of disputed dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and Cess with appropriate authorities. 
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanations given to us no amount was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules there under.
<p /><p /><p>  </p>
 Based on the records maintained, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayments of the dues to the Banks. The Company has neither issued any debentures nor has borrowed from any Financial Institution (excluding banks), Government or dues to debenture holders.



The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender and also not raised fund for short term period.


Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained


No funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes


The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.


The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
 The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument). The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable.
 . According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.


There is no such report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;


There are no such whistle-blower complaints received which auditor has to consider.
 N.A
 The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clauses 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
 Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
 The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable.
 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
 <p /><p>DIRECTOR’S REPORT</p><p>To The Members,</p><p /><p>Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd.,</p><p /><p>Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their 24th Annual Report of the Company together with the Standalone and Consolidated Audited financial Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022.</p><p />

<p />
FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.
<p /><p>The Board report has prepared based on the Standalone & Consolidated financial statements of the Company.</p><p /><table><tbody><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />Amount in Rs.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs </p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs</p><p /><p>Standalone</p><p>Consolidated (CFS)</p><p>Total Revenue</p><p>12,713.65</p><p>9,460.25</p><p>12,772.55</p><p>9,520.07</p><p>Total Expenses</p><p>8,861.70</p><p>7,336.96</p><p>8,921.91</p><p>7,391.96</p><p>Profit or Loss before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax</p><p>3,851.96</p><p>2,123.29</p><p>3,850.64</p><p>2,128.10</p><p>Less: Exceptional Items</p><p /><p> </p><p>-</p><p /><p>Less: Extraordinary Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Profit or Loss before Tax</p><p>3,851.96</p><p>2,123.29</p><p>3,850.64</p><p>2,128.10</p><p>Less/(add): Tax Liability for earlier years</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>Less: Current Tax</p><p>844.78</p><p>608.52</p><p>849.77</p><p>610.19</p><p>Deferred Tax</p><p>(13.84)</p><p>6.82</p><p>(13.84)</p><p>6.82</p><p>Profit or Loss after Tax</p><p>3,021.02</p><p>1,507.95</p><p>3014.71</p><p>1,511.10</p><p>Less: Adjustment for Subsidiary & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>(5.11)</p><p>(2.86)</p><p>Profit or Loss after adj. for Sub. & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>3,009.59</p><p>1,508.24</p><p>Add: Balance as per last Balance Sheet</p><p>4,799.11</p><p>3,291.16</p><p>4,365.97</p><p>2,876.96</p><p>Less: other adjustments</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>(6.00)</p><p>(19.23)</p><p>Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet</p><p>7,820.12</p><p>4,799.11</p><p>7,369.55</p><p>4,365.97</p><p /><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p />
DIVIDEND
<p /><p>No Dividend was declared for the current financial year.</p><p /><p />
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND
<p /><p>The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid last year. </p><p /><p />
REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:
<p /><p>Your Directors are optimistic about company’s business and hopeful of better performance with increased revenue in next year. There was no change in the nature of business of company.</p><p /><p />
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT
<p /><p /><p>The ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic has caused and continues to cause significant loss of life and has resulted in curtailment of economic activities across the world as local administrations and governments seek to limit spread of the disease, including through lockdown policies, restriction on business activities and business shutdowns. The economic impact of the pandemic in India has been largely devastating and is also impacted the business of the Company. However, the Company has taken all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being faced in the business. The Company adopted a provisional work from home policy for major part of employees during COVID-19 peak periods. The physical and emotional wellbeing of employees continues to be a top priority for the Company, with several initiatives to support employees and their families during the pandemic. The Company adhered to all the government advisories and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith.</p><p /><p>With the exception of above, there have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the ends of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and date of this report</p><p /><p />
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.
<p /><p />


<p />
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
<p /><p /><p>The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.</p><p /><p />
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
<p /><p><table><tbody><tr><td>


<p>Earnings</p></td><td>


<p>Rs:- 286.85 Lakhs</p></td></tr><tr><td>


<p>Outgo</p></td><td>


<p>Rs:- 357.75 Lakhs</p></td></tr></tbody></table></p><p />

<p />
STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY
<p /><p /><p>The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.</p><p />
DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
<p /><p /><p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 18,70,165/- (Rupees Eighteen Lakhs Seventy Thousand One Hundred Sixty five only) for the financial year 2021-22. However, during the financial year 2021-22, company has paid to Akshaya Patra Foundations, Mahan Trust and others Rs- 54,18,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also for Medical, Environmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p /><p />
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
<p /><p /><p>Company has complied with the provision of section 186 of Companies act 2013 in relation to Loan, Investment & Guarantee given by the company during the financial year under review.</p><p />
ANNUAL RETURN
<p /><p /><p />The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in (Annexure I) and Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March 2022 can also be access from the website of the Company at https://www.bksec.com.<p /><p /><p> </p><p />
EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS
<p /><p /><p>There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p />
COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES
<p /><p /><p>The Company does not fall under the prescribed class of companies under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the Company is not required to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee and furnish details in this regard.</p><p /><p />
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
<p /><p /><p />There were no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. (Annexure II)<p /><p /><p />
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
<p /><p /><p>A calendar of meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy. The notice and agenda with notes on each agenda item for the Board Meetings is circulated at least a week prior to the date of the meeting. </p><p /><p />During the year under review, the Board met Twelve (12) times during the financial year under review.<p /><p /><p>Following is the attendance of each of the Directors at the Board Meetings held during the year under review:</p><p /><p><table><tbody><tr><td><p />Sr. No.<p /></td><td><p />Name of the Directors<p /></td><td><p />No. of Board Meetings<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td> </td><td> </td><td><p />Entitled to Attend<p /></td><td><p />Attended<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />1<p /></td><td><p />JITENDRA SONI (05180177)<p /></td><td><p />12<p /></td><td><p />12<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />2<p /></td><td><p />SAAHIL MURARKA (06717827)<p /></td><td><p />12<p /></td><td><p />10<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />3<p /></td><td><p />ROHIT BHAT (00049049)<p /></td><td><p />12<p /></td><td><p />12<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />4<p /></td><td><p />ABHIJIT TALEKAR<p /></td><td><p />4<p /></td><td><p />4<p /></td></tr></tbody></table></p><p /><p> </p><p />
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
<p /><p />


<p>In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement:</p><p>


<p />
in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
<p /><p /><p> </p><p />
The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
<p /><p />

<p />
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
<p /><p> </p><p />Pursuant to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Act, the statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiary or subsidiaries and associate company is given as (Annexure-----III) [Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates companies included in the consolidated financial statement]<p /><p>Further, the Annual Accounts and related documents of the subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection at the Registered & Corporate Office of the Company. The Company will also make available copy thereof upon specific request by any Member of the Company interested in obtaining the same. Further, pursuant to Accounting Standard AS-21 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and section 129 of the companies Act 2013, Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company in this Annual Report include the financial information of its subsidiary.</p><p /><p />
DEPOSITS
<p /><p /><p>The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.</p><p /><p />
DIRECTORS
<p /><p /><p />Mr. Abhijit Talekar has resigned from the Board of the Director of the Company with effect from 28th September, 2021. The Board places our records its appreciation for the valuable contribution made to the Company during the tenure as a Director, during the year under review. In view of the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time KMPs.<p /><p />
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
<p /><p /><p>The provisions of Section 149 for appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the company.</p><p /><p />
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
<p /><p /><p>The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the operation were observed.</p><p /><p />
STATUTORY AUDITORS
<p /><p /><p />The Statutory Auditor M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Chartered Accountants, who completed the term of 5 Years, have express their willingness for re-appointment. It is proposed to re-appointment M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Chartered Accountants, who have given their consent that their re-appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rule 2014 and that the firm is not disqualified from being re-appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of the Companies Act 2013.</p><p /><p>The Board of Directors recommends the re-appointment of M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 317224E), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of Five (5) Years till Financial Year 2026-27 to hold office till the conclusion of the 29th AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2027. Accordingly, M/s Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Statutory Auditor of the Company holds office until the conclusion of the 29th Annual General Meeting.</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p />
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p /><p /><p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p />
SHARES
<p /><p /><p>During the year under review, the company has undertaken following transactions:</p><p><table><tbody><tr><td>


<p>Increase in Share Capital</p></td><td>


<p>Buy Back of Securities</p></td><td>


<p>Sweat Equity</p></td><td>


<p>Bonus Shares</p></td><td>


<p>Employees Stock Option Plan</p></td></tr><tr><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td></tr></tbody></table></p><p /><p> </p><p />
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS
<p /><p /><p>No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.</p><p /><p />
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
<p /><p /><p>The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. </p><p /><p>No Complaints pertaining to Sexual harassment were received during the financial year 2021-22. </p><p /><p />
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
<p /><p /><p>In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 5(2) & rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rule, 2014, particulars of the employees are set out in the Annexure IV to the Directors’ Report. However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the said Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to all the members of the Company and others entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the Company Secretary of the Company or may approach at the registered office of the Company.</p><p /><p> </p><p />
AWARDS
<p /><p /><p>Company has not received any award during the financial year under review.</p><p /><p />
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
<p /><p />
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<p>(DIN -06717827) (DIN -05180177)</p><p />
 REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:


Your Directors are optimistic about company’s business and hopeful of better performance with increased revenue in next year. There was no change in the nature of business of company.
 N.A
 DIVIDEND


No Dividend was declared for the current financial year.
 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.




Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption




The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.
 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.




Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption




The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.
 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.




Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption


The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.


Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo








Earnings



Rs:- 286.85 Lakhs




Outgo



Rs:- 357.75 Lakhs
 DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT



In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement:




in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;



The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;



The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;



The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;


 

The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT



The ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic has caused and continues to cause significant loss of life and has resulted in curtailment of economic activities across the world as local administrations and governments seek to limit spread of the disease, including through lockdown policies, restriction on business activities and business shutdowns. The economic impact of the pandemic in India has been largely devastating and is also impacted the business of the Company. However, the Company has taken all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being faced in the business. The Company adopted a provisional work from home policy for major part of employees during COVID-19 peak periods. The physical and emotional wellbeing of employees continues to be a top priority for the Company, with several initiatives to support employees and their families during the pandemic. The Company adhered to all the government advisories and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith.

With the exception of above, there have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the ends of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and date of this report
 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
<p />


<p>Company has complied with the provision of section 186 of Companies act 2013 in relation to Loan, Investment & Guarantee given by the company during the financial year under review.</p><p>  </p>
 <p>Annexure - II</p><p /><p>FORM NO. AOC -2</p><p>(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.</p><p /><p>Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.</p><p />

<p />
Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.—NO TRANSACTION DURING THE YEAR
<p /><p><table><tbody><tr><td><p />SL. No.<p /></td><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p />Details<p /></td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Date of approval by the Board<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Amount paid as advances, if any<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first proviso to section 188<p /></td><td> </td></tr></tbody></table></p><p /><p> </p>

<p />
Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.—NO TRANSACTION DURING THE YEAR
<p /><p><table><tbody><tr><td><p />SL. No.<p /></td><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p />Details<p /></td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Date of approval by the Board<p /></td><td> </td></tr><tr><td> </td><td><p />Amount paid as advances, if any<p /></td><td> </td></tr></tbody></table></p><p /><p>Form shall be signed by the people who have signed the Board’s Report.</p><p>  </p>
 false
 false
 <p />N.A  <p />
 2022-09-02
 ANNUAL RETURN
<p />


<p />The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in (Annexure I) and Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March 2022 can also be access from the website of the Company at https://www.bksec.com.<p /><p>  </p>
 DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
<p />


<p>The provisions of Section 149 for appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the company.</p><p>  </p>
 DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p />


<p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p>  </p>
 STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY
<p />


<p>The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.</p><p>  </p>
 STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY
<p />


<p>The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.</p><p>  </p><p>  </p>
 FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.


<p>The Board report has prepared based on the Standalone & Consolidated financial statements of the Company.</p><p /><table><tbody><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />Amount in Rs.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs </p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p>(Rs) in Lakhs</p><p /><p>Standalone</p><p>Consolidated (CFS)</p><p>Total Revenue</p><p>12,713.65</p><p>9,460.25</p><p>12,772.55</p><p>9,520.07</p><p>Total Expenses</p><p>8,861.70</p><p>7,336.96</p><p>8,921.91</p><p>7,391.96</p><p>Profit or Loss before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax</p><p>3,851.96</p><p>2,123.29</p><p>3,850.64</p><p>2,128.10</p><p>Less: Exceptional Items</p><p /><p> </p><p>-</p><p /><p>Less: Extraordinary Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Profit or Loss before Tax</p><p>3,851.96</p><p>2,123.29</p><p>3,850.64</p><p>2,128.10</p><p>Less/(add): Tax Liability for earlier years</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>Less: Current Tax</p><p>844.78</p><p>608.52</p><p>849.77</p><p>610.19</p><p>Deferred Tax</p><p>(13.84)</p><p>6.82</p><p>(13.84)</p><p>6.82</p><p>Profit or Loss after Tax</p><p>3,021.02</p><p>1,507.95</p><p>3014.71</p><p>1,511.10</p><p>Less: Adjustment for Subsidiary & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>(5.11)</p><p>(2.86)</p><p>Profit or Loss after adj. for Sub. & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>3,009.59</p><p>1,508.24</p><p>Add: Balance as per last Balance Sheet</p><p>4,799.11</p><p>3,291.16</p><p>4,365.97</p><p>2,876.96</p><p>Less: other adjustments</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>(6.00)</p><p>(19.23)</p><p>Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet</p><p>7,820.12</p><p>4,799.11</p><p>7,369.55</p><p>4,365.97</p><p /><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p>  </p>
 REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:


<p>Your Directors are optimistic about company’s business and hopeful of better performance with increased revenue in next year. There was no change in the nature of business of company.</p><p>  </p>
 <p>DIRECTORS</p><p /><p />Mr. Abhijit Talekar has resigned from the Board of the Director of the Company with effect from 28th September, 2021. The Board places our records its appreciation for the valuable contribution made to the Company during the tenure as a Director, during the year under review. In view of the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time KMPs.<p /><p>  </p>
 SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
<p> </p>


<p />Pursuant to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Act, the statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiary or subsidiaries and associate company is given as (Annexure-----III) [Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates companies included in the consolidated financial statement]<p /><p>Further, the Annual Accounts and related documents of the subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection at the Registered & Corporate Office of the Company. The Company will also make available copy thereof upon specific request by any Member of the Company interested in obtaining the same. Further, pursuant to Accounting Standard AS-21 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and section 129 of the companies Act 2013, Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company in this Annual Report include the financial information of its subsidiary.</p><p /><p>  </p>
 DEPOSITS
<p />


<p>The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.</p><p>  </p>
 DEPOSITS
<p />


<p>The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.</p><p>  </p><p>  </p>
 DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS
<p />


<p>No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.</p><p>  </p>
 ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
<p />


<p>The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the operation were observed.</p><p>  </p>
 DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
<p />


<p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 18,70,165/- (Rupees Eighteen Lakhs Seventy Thousand One Hundred Sixty five only) for the financial year 2021-22. However, during the financial year 2021-22, company has paid to Akshaya Patra Foundations, Mahan Trust and others Rs- 54,18,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also for Medical, Environmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p /><p>  </p>
 DIRECTORS
<p />


<p />Mr. Abhijit Talekar has resigned from the Board of the Director of the Company with effect from 28th September, 2021. The Board places our records its appreciation for the valuable contribution made to the Company during the tenure as a Director, during the year under review. In view of the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time KMPs.<p /><p>  </p>
 <p /><p> </p><p>  </p>

<p />
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p /><p />


<p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p>  </p>
 <p /><p> </p><p>  </p>

<p />
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p /><p />


<p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p>  </p><p>  </p>
 <p />N.A  <p />
 12
 false
 Rotary Club of Bombay Charities Trust No-3
 Education
 MUMBAI
 Maharashtra
 MUMBAI
 0
 500000
 500000
 Other implementing agencies
 Akshaya Patra Foundations
 Poverty, hunger, malnutrition
 MUMBAI
 Maharashtra
 MUMBAI
 0
 1188000
 1188000
 Other implementing agencies
 Jnana  Prabodhini Stri Shakti Prabodhan
 Poverty, hunger, malnutrition
 PUNE
 Maharashtra
 PUNE
 0
 280000
 280000
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 Rural development projects
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 Maharashtra
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 800000
 800000
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 Maharashtra
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 0
 2150000
 2150000
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 Prabhat Foundation
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 0
 500000
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 Other implementing agencies
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 DIRECTOR
 05180177
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 SAAHIL
 MANOJ
 MURARKA
 DIRECTOR
 06717827
 2022-09-02
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 14128000
 5,00,000 (P.Y.: 5,00,000)  Equity Shares of SGD 1/-
each in B & K Securities Pte Ltd. Singapore
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 15832000
 1,80,000 (P.Y.: 1,80,000)  Equity Shares of GBP 1/-
each in B & K Securities Ltd. U.K.
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 49050000
 37,05,000 (P.Y.: 37,05,000)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 10972000
 1,02,510 (P.Y.: 1,02,510)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Krypton Intra Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 8049000
 8,04,900 (P.Y.: 8,04,900)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each in Maximus Investment Advisory  Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 1845000
 1,84,500 (P.Y.: 1,84,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Panna & Prajna Art Advisory  Pvt Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 3097000
 11,54,285 (P.Y.:11,54,285)  Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/-
each in Sankalp Retail Value Stores Private Limited
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 104206000
 29,20,290 (P.Y.: 29,20,290) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 10645000
 2,36,556 (P.Y.: 2,36,556) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
   Batlivala & Karani Capital Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 41804000
 5,95,786 (P.Y.: 5,95,786) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Batlivala & Karani Resources Management Pvt Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 17423000
 1,44,22,666 (P.Y.: NIL) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each in 
Lynks Logistics Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 37125000
 161 (P.Y.: NIL) Compulsary Convertible Preference share of Rs 10/- each in Karkinios Healthcare Private Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 6040000
 Nil ( P.Y. 34,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Asian Granito India Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 10,268) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Automotive Axles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 7443000
 Nil (P.Y: 16,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- of Caplin Point Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 40,440) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Jay Bharat Maruti Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 20,382) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of MM Forging Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 14,694) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of SAMKRG Pistons & Rings Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 4965000
 Nil (P.Y: 7,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Sagar Cement Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 3,950) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Transpeck Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 43,800) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Himmatsingka Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 56,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- of Prozone Intu Properties Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 7,910) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Vardhman Textile Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 4406000
 Nil (P.Y: 43,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of  Sakar Healthcare Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 10867000
 Nil (P.Y: 88,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kirloskar Ferrous Industries Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 10255000
 Nil (P.Y: 12,400) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kajaria Ceramics Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 19487000
 Nil (P.Y: 32,651) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Ramco Systems Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 7923000
 Nil (P.Y: 7,450) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Triton Valves Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 1843000
 Nil (P.Y: 3,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Rajratan Global Wire Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 8873000
 Nil (P.Y: 88,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Thirumalai Chemicals Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 22281000
 Nil (P.Y: 9,700) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of SKF India Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 10451000
 Nil (P.Y 5,20,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of C.G Power & Solutions Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 13036000
 Nil (P.Y: 27,900) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- of Century Textiles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 7807000
 Nil (P.Y: 43,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Apcotex Lat Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 7242000
 Nil (P.Y: 12,400) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kansai Nerolac Paints Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 4838000
 Nil (P.Y: 34,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Bhansali Engineering Polymers ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Quoted
 0
 1,100 (P.Y. 1100) Non-convertible Debentures SR-54 & 49 of Rs. 12.50 NTPC Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 14129000
 5,00,000 (P.Y.: 5,00,000)  Equity Shares of SGD 1/- each in B & K Securities Pte Ltd. Singapore
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 15832000
 1,80,000 (P.Y.: 1,80,000)  Equity Shares of GBP 1/- each in B & K Securities Ltd. U.K.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 49050000
 37,05,000 (P.Y.: 37,05,000)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Private Limited
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 10972000
 1,02,510 (P.Y.: 1,02,510)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each in Krypton Intra Private Limited
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 8049000
 8,04,900 (P.Y.: 8,04,900)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each in Maximus Investment Advisory  Private Limited
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 1845000
 1,84,500 (P.Y.: 1,84,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Panna & Prajna Art Advisory  Pvt Ltd

"
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 3097000
 11,54,285 (P.Y.:11,54,285)  Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/-
each in Sankalp Retail Value Stores Private Limited
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 104206000
 29,20,290 (P.Y.: 29,20,290) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 10645000
 2,36,556 (P.Y.: 2,36,556) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
   Batlivala & Karani Capital Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 41803000
 5,95,786 (P.Y.: 5,95,786) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Batlivala & Karani Resources Management Pvt Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 0
 1,44,22,666 (P.Y.Nil) equity shares of Rs. 1/- each in Lynks Logistics Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 Unquoted
 0
 165 (P.Y.Nil) Comulsary Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10/-each 
Karkinos Healthcare Private Ltd
 Investments in mutual funds
 Other investments
 quoted
 99995000
 Nil (P.Y.: 3,29,430.594 Units) at a Face Value of  10/-(P.Y.Rs.nil)- each 
ICICI Liquid M F
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 AADCM9790P
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 F46987004
 false
 2021-04-01
 2022-03-31
 .9999
 INR
 NA
 8050000
 -13428000
 11312000
 11312000
 11154000
 0
 -2261000
 0
 -2261000
 0
 KRYPTON INTRA PVT LTD
 INDIA
 U65993WB1994PTC064407
 AACCK1123D
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 F47665518
 false
 2021-04-01
 2022-03-31
 .51
 INR
 NA
 2010000
 67191000
 69215000
 69215000
 53922000
 454000
 362000
 51000
 311000
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 AACCK7371H
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 F47667530
 false
 2021-04-01
 2022-03-31
 .9987
 INR
 NA
 37100000
 7583000
 47618000
 47618000
 0
 5434000
 1867000
 369000
 1419000
 0
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 INDIA
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 AAECP5719N
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 F47009105
 false
 2021-04-01
 2022-03-31
 .9736
 INR
 NA
 1895000
 -642000
 1528000
 1528000
 1342000
 0
 -100000
 0
 -100000
 0
 Batlivala & Karani Sec. Pte. Ltd.
 SINGAPORE
 AAECB1315J
 BYWAZ20060456
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 false
 false
 2021-04-01
 2022-03-31
 1
 SGD
 INR
 14515000
 -14001000
 712000
 712000
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 Batlivala & Karani Sec Ltd
 UNITED KINGDOM
 BYWAZ20070251
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 false
 false
 2021-04-01
 2022-03-31
 1
 GBP
 INR
 14553000
 -14553000
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 Auditors firm
 AGARWAL
SANGANERIA &
CO.
 Saket Sanganeria
 317224E
 300679
 208, Maker Bhawan
3, 21 New Marine
Lines, Mumbai-
400020
 AADFA8676M
 G72497522
 2022-09-02
 2022-09-02
 SAAHIL MANOJ MURARKA
 06717827
 AOLPM0168G
 1981-11-11
 Director
 Bachelor of computer science
 13315004
 13277000
 0
 13277000
 13277000
 JITENDRA SONI
 05180177
 AXPPS8968R
 1975-05-06
 Director
 C.A/C.S
 0
 4778000
 0
 4778000
 4778000
 ROHIT VASUDEV BHAT
 00049049
 ACCPB6722C
 1971-05-30
 Director
 B.COM
 0
 7628000
 0
 7628000
 7628000
 OM PRAKASH TRIPATHY
 AGXPT8364M
 1975-12-02
 Company Secretary
 C.A/C.S
 0
 5828000
 0
 5828000
 5828000
 ABHIJIT PANDHARINATH TALEKAR
 08561428
 AFWPT3967N
 1981-09-20
 Director
 Bachelor of Arts
 0
 2702000
 0
 2702000
 2702000
 9971
 FINANCIAL AND RELATED SERVICES
 1086003000
 99715210
 690549530
 0
 1086003000
 0
 M M MURARKA SHARE & SEECURITIES PVT LTD
 INDIA
 AABCM7219F
 U67110WB1995PTC076260
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Associate
 Reimbursement of expenses, rent paid, Brokerage Income Earned (Net of GST)
 288000
 173803000
 0
 0
 0
 Jitendra Soni
 INDIA
 AXPPS8968R
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 4778000
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI
 INDIA
 AAAFB6997K
 NA
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Rent Paid
 320000
 0
 0
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AADCM9790P
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan advances given
 0
 200000
 0
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AACCK7371H
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 loan and advances given
 450000
 0
 0
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 INDIA
 AAECP5719N
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan and advances given
 65000
 0
 0
 Saahil Murarka
 INDIA
 AOLPM0168G
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 13277000
 0
 0
 M M MURARKA SHARE & SEECURITIES PVT LTD
 INDIA
 AABCM7219F
 U67110WB1995PTC076260
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Associate
 Reimbursement of expenses, rent paid
 98000
 88227000
 0
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AABCB7986Q
 U67190WB1992PTC053980
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Brokerage Received, loans and advances given and taken
 0
 0
 Jitendra Soni
 INDIA
 AXPPS8968R
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 4453000
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI
 INDIA
 AAAFB6997K
 NA
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Rent Paid
 120000
 0
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AACCK7371H
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 loan and advances given and taken,
 1615000
 0
 0
 Saahil Murarka
 INDIA
 AOLPM0168G
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 15746000
 0
 0
 
 
 Rent Paid                   19.20 
Brokerage Income Earned (Net of GST)                     2.07 
Loans/Advances Given /Repayment of Loan Taken                                  1,028.88 
Loans/Advances Taken (Payment receipt against loan given)                       -                   687.88
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>c) Investments</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PVT. LTD.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Note  1 forming part of the consolidated financial statements<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Significant accounting policies <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and other retirement benefits to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />b)   Use of Estimates<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Differences between actual and estimates are recognized in the period in which the result are known or are materialised.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />c) Investments<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />d)      Tangible Fixed Assets<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Tangible Fixed Assets have been stated at actual cost of acquisition or constructions, including incidental expenses. They are stated at historical cost. Actual cost is inclusive of installation cost, freight, duties, taxes, financing cost and other incidental expenses but net of CENVAT.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />e)      Impairment of Assets<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of any assets and/or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each assets and/or cash generating units to the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use are determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />f)      Intangible Assets & Amortization<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortization.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) These intangible assets are amortized as below:</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Stock Exchange Membership Card : 10 Years</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Computer Software : 3 Years</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Website: 5 Years</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />g)    Depreciation <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) Tangible Assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. <br></br><br></br>Depreciation is provided on tangible asset on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><br></br>Management’s estimates of the useful lives of certain assets are as follows: <br></br><br></br>a. Air Conditioners: 15 years<br></br>b. Electrical Appliances: 15 years<br></br>c. Furniture and Fixtures: 15 years<br></br>d. Art and Paintings: 15 years<br></br><br></br>For the above class of assets, based on internal assessment, management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the asset would be used.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) Individual Assets costing less then Rs.5,000/- have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />h)    Retirement Benefits<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(i)   Gratuity:</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. However, the company through its Trust has taken a policy with LIC to cover the gratuity liability of the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC is provided for as liability in the books.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii)  Provident Fund:</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is charged against revenue on accrual basis.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(iii) Leave Encashment:</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Company does not extends the benefit of leave encashment to its employees while in service as well as on retirement from service of the company.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />i)    Revenue Recognition<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />j)  Miscellaneous Expenditure<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Miscellaneous expenditure represents only deferred revenue expenses. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) Deferred revenue expenditure is written off over the period of benefit, whenever the exact period of benefit can be determined. Other deferred revenue expenditures, where period of benefit cannot be exactly determined, are written off over a period of 5 to 10 years.  </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />k)   Provisions & Contingences<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjust to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(iii) Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contigent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />l)   Taxes on Income <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Current Tax: - Provision for Current Tax is computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with Accounting standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” issued by, The Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses comprise of both current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>(iii) MAT Credit Entitlement :-Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />m)   Earning Per Share<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />n)  Foreign Exchange Transactions<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All monetary items, which comprises of Monetary Assets and Monetary Liabilities are translated at the year end at the closing rates prevailing on the last day of the year. Any foreign exchange gain or loss arising from the settlement of transaction or translation of monetary items at the year end is recognized as income and expense, as the case may be, for the year.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>ii) Non – monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non – monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />o) Leases<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower oh the fair value and present value oh the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases.  Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />p) CENVAT <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Cenvat benefit is accounted by reducing the purchase cost of Services and Fixed Assets for which Cenvat credit is available as per the Cenvat Credit Rules as amended from time to time.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>ii) Cenvat Credit is availed only on payment basis and is adjusted against the Service Tax liability. No Cenvat is availed where payment is outstanding. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>iii) The credit of Cenvat, which is not availed in the current financial year is carried forward and availed in the subsequent year.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>q) Principal of Consolidation</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The consolidated financial information incorporates the results of the parent and its subsidiary & Associated companies. The control is normally evidenced when the company is able to govern another company’s financial and operating policies so has to benefit from its activities or where the company owns, either directly or indirectly, the majority of another company’s equity voting rights unless in exceptional circumstances it can be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of subsidiary are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2022<p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2021<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Krypton Intra Private Limited</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>51.00%</p></td><td><p>51.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Limited UK</p></td><td><p>UK</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>99.99%</p></td><td><p>99.99%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>99.87%</p></td><td><p>99.87%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>97.36%</p></td><td><p>97.36%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore</p></td><td><p>Singapore</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of Associated are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2016<p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2015<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>M.M. Murarka Shares & Securities Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>26.98%</p></td><td><p>26.98%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />r) Goodwill<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Goodwill represents the difference between the Group’s share in the share value of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the subsidiaries. For this purpose, the Group’s share of net worth is determined on the basis of the latest financial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such financial statements and the date of respective acquisition.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Goodwill arising out of consolidation of financial statements of Subsidiaries/Associated and joint Ventures is not amortised. However the same is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet Date.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />s) Basis of preparation of consolidated Financial Statement<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statement of the company and its subsidiary/Associated companies</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• Reference in theses notes to the ‘company’ shall mean to include M/s BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PVT. LTD. and its subsidiary/Associated consolidated in these financial statements unless otherwise stated.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The financial statement of the company and its subsidiary companies have been considered on a line by line basis by adding together the value like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group  transactions resulting in unrealized profit or loss. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The financial statement of the company and its Associates companies have been considered by using the equity/proportinate method in CFS. Consolidation of assets/liabilities is not done in case of assocates. Merely, the valuation of investment in the associates is valued as per equity method of accounting.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The consolidated financial statement have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent  possible, in the same manner as the separate financial statements.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary over the share value of the subsidiaries at the time of acquisition of share in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill, which is not being amortized, or Capital reserve as the case may be.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• Minority interest’s share of net profit of consolidated financial statements for the year is identified and adjusted the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to share holder of the company.<br></br><br></br>Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />t) Basis of Preparation and Translation into Indian Rupees:<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The financial statements of Foreign Subsediaries have been prepared for the purpose of compliance with the provisions of Section 128 and Section 129 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 and have been translated to Indian Rupees (Rs.) in accordance with Accounting Standard – 11 issued by the ICAI on “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. The functional currency of the foreign subsediary Companies are their respective currencies. The financial statements are based on the Audited Financial Statements of the respectice foreign subsidiary Company prepared under applicable laws of of that country, where the Company is originally incorporated and only translation of said original audited accounts are being done therein.<br></br><br></br>The financial statements are prepared for limited purposes to submit with the Registrar of the Companies in India along with the Annual Accounts of 100% holding company i.e. Batlivala & Karani Securities India Private Limited</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The translation of foreign currency into Rupees has been carried out:</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>a) For assets and liabilities (both monetary and non-monetary items) using the rate of exchange prevailing on the Balance Sheet date</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>b) The revenue (income & expenses) related to foreign transactions is translated at the average rates prevalent during the reporting period. However, the revenue related exceptional items are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>c) The difference in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realized gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions, are adjusted in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve which has been shown in Reserves & Surplus, as required under Accounting Standard – 11.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>u) Other accounting policies adopted are consistent with generally accepted accounting practices.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p /><p>  </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Significant accounting policies </p></td></tr><tr><td><p />a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and other retirement benefits to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.</p></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Note  1 forming part of the consolidated financial statements</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Significant accounting policies <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and other retirement benefits to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />b)   Use of Estimates<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Differences between actual and estimates are recognized in the period in which the result are known or are materialised.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />c) Investments<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />d)      Tangible Fixed Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Tangible Fixed Assets have been stated at actual cost of acquisition or constructions, including incidental expenses. They are stated at historical cost. Actual cost is inclusive of installation cost, freight, duties, taxes, financing cost and other incidental expenses but net of CENVAT.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />e)      Impairment of Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of any assets and/or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each assets and/or cash generating units to the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use are determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets. </p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />f)      Intangible Assets & Amortization<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortization.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) These intangible assets are amortized as below:</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Stock Exchange Membership Card : 10 Years</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Computer Software : 3 Years</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Website: 5 Years</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />g)    Depreciation <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) Tangible Assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. <br></br><br></br>Depreciation is provided on tangible asset on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><br></br>Management’s estimates of the useful lives of certain assets are as follows: <br></br><br></br>a. Air Conditioners: 15 years<br></br>b. Electrical Appliances: 15 years<br></br>c. Furniture and Fixtures: 15 years<br></br>d. Art and Paintings: 15 years<br></br><br></br>For the above class of assets, based on internal assessment, management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the asset would be used.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) Individual Assets costing less then Rs.5,000/- have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. </p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />h)    Retirement Benefits<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i)   Gratuity:</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. However, the company through its Trust has taken a policy with LIC to cover the gratuity liability of the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC is provided for as liability in the books.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii)  Provident Fund:</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is charged against revenue on accrual basis.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(iii) Leave Encashment:</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Company does not extends the benefit of leave encashment to its employees while in service as well as on retirement from service of the company.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i)    Revenue Recognition<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />j)  Miscellaneous Expenditure<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Miscellaneous expenditure represents only deferred revenue expenses. </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) Deferred revenue expenditure is written off over the period of benefit, whenever the exact period of benefit can be determined. Other deferred revenue expenditures, where period of benefit cannot be exactly determined, are written off over a period of 5 to 10 years.  </p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />k)   Provisions & Contingences<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjust to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(iii) Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contigent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. </p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />l)   Taxes on Income <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Current Tax: - Provision for Current Tax is computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with Accounting standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” issued by, The Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses comprise of both current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>(iii) MAT Credit Entitlement :-Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />m)   Earning Per Share<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />n)  Foreign Exchange Transactions<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All monetary items, which comprises of Monetary Assets and Monetary Liabilities are translated at the year end at the closing rates prevailing on the last day of the year. Any foreign exchange gain or loss arising from the settlement of transaction or translation of monetary items at the year end is recognized as income and expense, as the case may be, for the year.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>ii) Non – monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non – monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />o) Leases<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower oh the fair value and present value oh the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases.  Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />p) CENVAT <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>i) Cenvat benefit is accounted by reducing the purchase cost of Services and Fixed Assets for which Cenvat credit is available as per the Cenvat Credit Rules as amended from time to time.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>ii) Cenvat Credit is availed only on payment basis and is adjusted against the Service Tax liability. No Cenvat is availed where payment is outstanding. </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>iii) The credit of Cenvat, which is not availed in the current financial year is carried forward and availed in the subsequent year.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>q) Principal of Consolidation</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The consolidated financial information incorporates the results of the parent and its subsidiary & Associated companies. The control is normally evidenced when the company is able to govern another company’s financial and operating policies so has to benefit from its activities or where the company owns, either directly or indirectly, the majority of another company’s equity voting rights unless in exceptional circumstances it can be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of subsidiary are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2022<p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2021<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Krypton Intra Private Limited</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>51.00%</p></td><td><p>51.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Limited UK</p></td><td><p>UK</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>99.99%</p></td><td><p>99.99%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>99.87%</p></td><td><p>99.87%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>97.36%</p></td><td><p>97.36%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore</p></td><td><p>Singapore</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of Associated are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2016<p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2015<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>M.M. Murarka Shares & Securities Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>26.98%</p></td><td><p>26.98%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />r) Goodwill<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Goodwill represents the difference between the Group’s share in the share value of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the subsidiaries. For this purpose, the Group’s share of net worth is determined on the basis of the latest financial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such financial statements and the date of respective acquisition.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Goodwill arising out of consolidation of financial statements of Subsidiaries/Associated and joint Ventures is not amortised. However the same is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet Date.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />s) Basis of preparation of consolidated Financial Statement<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statement of the company and its subsidiary/Associated companies</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• Reference in theses notes to the ‘company’ shall mean to include M/s BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PVT. LTD. and its subsidiary/Associated consolidated in these financial statements unless otherwise stated.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The financial statement of the company and its subsidiary companies have been considered on a line by line basis by adding together the value like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group  transactions resulting in unrealized profit or loss. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The financial statement of the company and its Associates companies have been considered by using the equity/proportinate method in CFS. Consolidation of assets/liabilities is not done in case of assocates. Merely, the valuation of investment in the associates is valued as per equity method of accounting.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The consolidated financial statement have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent  possible, in the same manner as the separate financial statements.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary over the share value of the subsidiaries at the time of acquisition of share in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill, which is not being amortized, or Capital reserve as the case may be.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• Minority interest’s share of net profit of consolidated financial statements for the year is identified and adjusted the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to share holder of the company.<br></br><br></br>Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />t) Basis of Preparation and Translation into Indian Rupees:<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The financial statements of Foreign Subsediaries have been prepared for the purpose of compliance with the provisions of Section 128 and Section 129 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 and have been translated to Indian Rupees (Rs.) in accordance with Accounting Standard – 11 issued by the ICAI on “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. The functional currency of the foreign subsediary Companies are their respective currencies. The financial statements are based on the Audited Financial Statements of the respectice foreign subsidiary Company prepared under applicable laws of of that country, where the Company is originally incorporated and only translation of said original audited accounts are being done therein.<br></br><br></br>The financial statements are prepared for limited purposes to submit with the Registrar of the Companies in India along with the Annual Accounts of 100% holding company i.e. Batlivala & Karani Securities India Private Limited</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The translation of foreign currency into Rupees has been carried out:</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>a) For assets and liabilities (both monetary and non-monetary items) using the rate of exchange prevailing on the Balance Sheet date</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>b) The revenue (income & expenses) related to foreign transactions is translated at the average rates prevalent during the reporting period. However, the revenue related exceptional items are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>c) The difference in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realized gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions, are adjusted in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve which has been shown in Reserves & Surplus, as required under Accounting Standard – 11.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>u) Other accounting policies adopted are consistent with generally accepted accounting practices.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p />
 <p></p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>  Tangible Fixed Assets</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Tangible Fixed Assets have been stated at actual cost of acquisition or constructions, including incidental expenses. They are stated at historical cost. Actual cost is inclusive of installation cost, freight, duties, taxes, financing cost and other incidental expenses but net of CENVAT.</p></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>f)      Intangible Assets & Amortization</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortization.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) These intangible assets are amortized as below:</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Stock Exchange Membership Card : 10 Years</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Computer Software : 3 Years</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Website: 5 Years</p></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Notes forming part of the financial statements</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note 34 Employee Benefits disclosures under Accounting Standards-15<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Defined contribution plans<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ` 43,50,994/- (Year ended 31 March, 2021 ` 45,52,031/- for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Defined benefit plans<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company offers the employee benefit in the form of Gratuity only to its employees:<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Components of employer expense<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current service cost<p /></td><td><p />                         61.77 <p /></td><td><p />                    59.93 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Past service cost-Vested<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Past service cost-Unvested<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Interest cost<p /></td><td><p />                         30.44 <p /></td><td><p />                    28.62 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                         28.30 <p /></td><td><p />                    28.59 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial (losses)/gains<p /></td><td><p />                         18.83 <p /></td><td><p />                      3.23 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Adjustment to the opening fund<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss<p /></td><td><p />                        82.74 <p /></td><td><p />                   63.20 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual contribution and benefit payments for year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual benefit payments<p /></td><td><p />                         63.05 <p /></td><td><p />                    65.35 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual contributions<p /></td><td><p />                         61.00 <p /></td><td><p />                    30.45 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of defined benefit obligation<p /></td><td><p />                            577 <p /></td><td><p />                       493 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Fair value of plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                            574 <p /></td><td><p />                       430 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet<p /></td><td><p />                             (3)<p /></td><td><p />                       (63)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Unrecognised Past Service Cost<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net Liability <p /></td><td><p />                             (3)<p /></td><td><p />                       (63)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net Liability is bifurcated as follows:<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Non-Current<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current<p /></td><td><p />                      295,981 <p /></td><td><p />                         63 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO at beginning of the year<p /></td><td><p />                       493.13 <p /></td><td><p />                  467.78 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Unfunded portion of Gratuity Obligation (Previous years)<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current service cost <p /></td><td><p />                         61.77 <p /></td><td><p />                    59.93 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Interest cost <p /></td><td><p />                         30.44 <p /></td><td><p />                    28.62 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial (losses)/gains<p /></td><td><p />                       (54.89)<p /></td><td><p />                    (2.15)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Benefits paid<p /></td><td><p />                         63.05 <p /></td><td><p />                    65.35 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO at the end of the year<p /></td><td><p />                      577.19 <p /></td><td><p />                 493.13 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Change in fair value of assets during the year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Plan assets at beginning of the year<p /></td><td><p />                       429.94 <p /></td><td><p />                  437.34 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                         28.30 <p /></td><td><p />                    28.59 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual company contributions<p /></td><td><p />                         61.00 <p /></td><td><p />                    30.45 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial gain / (loss)<p /></td><td><p />                         36.06 <p /></td><td><p />                    (1.08)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Benefits paid<p /></td><td><p />                         63.05 <p /></td><td><p />                    65.35 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Adjustment to the opening fund<p /></td><td><p />                         81.98 <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Plan assets at the end of the year<p /></td><td><p />                      574.23 <p /></td><td><p />                 429.94 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                                   64.36 <p /></td><td><p />                             29.67 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Composition of the plan assets is as follows:<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Government bonds<p /></td><td><p />                       574.23 <p /></td><td><p />                  429.94 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial assumptions<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Discount rate<p /></td><td><p />6.70%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />6.70%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Salary esclation<p /></td><td><p />14.00%<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Attrition<p /></td><td><p />15%<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />3.The management has already contributed amount of Rs. 61.00 Lakh into the Gratuity fund set up by the LIC before income tax filling of return of FY 2021-22.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> Effect of a 1% change in health care cost <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> 31 March, 2022<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />  31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> Increase by 1% <p /></td><td><p /> Decrease by 1% <p /></td><td><p /> Increase by 1% <p /></td><td><p /> Decrease by 1% <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Aggregate current service and interest cost<p /></td><td><p />                           0.92 <p /></td><td><p />                      0.92 <p /></td><td><p />                               0.89 <p /></td><td><p />                                  0.89 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Closing balance of obligation<p /></td><td><p />                       578.11 <p /></td><td><p />                  576.26 <p /></td><td><p />                           494.02 <p /></td><td><p />                              492.25 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Experience adjustments <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> 2020- 2021 <p /></td><td><p /> 2nd prior year <p /></td><td><p /> 3rd prior year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO<p /></td><td><p />                       493.13 <p /></td><td><p />                  467.78 <p /></td><td><p />                           454.83 <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Fair value of plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                       429.94 <p /></td><td><p />                  437.34 <p /></td><td><p />                           399.62 <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Funded status Deficit<p /></td><td><p />                       (63.20)<p /></td><td><p />                   (30.45)<p /></td><td><p />                            (55.21)<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2022 <p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial assumptions for long-term compensated absences<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Discount rate<p /></td><td><p />6.70%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />6.70%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Salary escalation<p /></td><td><p />14.00%<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Attrition (Refer point no.3)<p /></td><td><p />15.00%<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />3. The management estimates of the level of attrition in the company over the long term. Estimated withdrawls rates should take into account the broad economic  <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />   overlook, type of sector the company operates in and measures taken by the management to retain/relieve the employees..<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />For Agarwal & Sanganeria & Co.<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />For and on behalf of the Board of Directors <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Chartrered Accountant<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> For Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvtl Ltd. <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />FRN: 317224E<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />Saahil Murarka<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> Jitendra Soni <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Saket Sanganeria<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Partner<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Membership No: 300679<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />Director<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> Director <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />(DIN: 06717827)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> (DIN:05180177) <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> Omprakash Tripathy <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Place : Mumbai<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> Company Secretary <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Date : 02nd Sep, 2022<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> (Membership No. A-29521) <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 • The consolidated financial statement have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent  possible, in the same manner as the separate financial statements.
 0
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>q) Principal of Consolidation</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The consolidated financial information incorporates the results of the parent and its subsidiary & Associated companies. The control is normally evidenced when the company is able to govern another company’s financial and operating policies so has to benefit from its activities or where the company owns, either directly or indirectly, the majority of another company’s equity voting rights unless in exceptional circumstances it can be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of subsidiary are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2022<p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2021<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Krypton Intra Private Limited</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>51.00%</p></td><td><p>51.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Limited UK</p></td><td><p>UK</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>99.99%</p></td><td><p>99.99%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>99.87%</p></td><td><p>99.87%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>97.36%</p></td><td><p>97.36%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore</p></td><td><p>Singapore</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of Associated are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2016<p /></td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2015<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>M.M. Murarka Shares & Securities Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td><p>26.98%</p></td><td><p>26.98%</p></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Q) Cash & Cash Equivalents </p></td></tr><tr><td><p />Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with bank in current account (other than earmarked), fixed  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Deposits with bank (free from any encumbrances), cheques on hand and balances in foreign currency and prepaid cards.<p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 -43433000
 -40265000
 84777000
 46898000
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p> Notes annexed to and forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> (Amount in Rs.) <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />      PARTICULARS<p /></td><td><p /> Year Ended <p /></td><td><p /> Year Ended <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> 31.03.2022 <p /></td><td><p /> 31.03.2021 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />NOTE - 18<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />INCOME FROM OPERATIONS<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Brokerage (Equity & Mutual Funds)<p /></td><td><p />             10,380.19 <p /></td><td><p />                       8,182.29 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Brokerage (Insurance)<p /></td><td><p />                    30.27 <p /></td><td><p />                            33.62 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Brokerage from Merchant Banking (Gross)<p /></td><td><p />                  142.93 <p /></td><td><p />                          451.51 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Professional Fees Received<p /></td><td><p />                    50.06 <p /></td><td><p />                            44.00 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Business Support Servcie Fees<p /></td><td><p />                  286.85 <p /></td><td><p />                          335.50 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> Interest on Fixed Deposits (IRDA)<p /></td><td><p />                    14.39 <p /></td><td><p />                            13.18 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />TOTAL<p /></td><td><p />             10,904.70 <p /></td><td><p />                       9,060.11 <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 i)    Revenue Recognition


All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Note 24 Earning Per Share</p></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2022<p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2021 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Earnings per share<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Basic & Diluted<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                     3,009.59 <p /></td><td><p />                             1,508.24 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net profit / (loss) for the year<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                     3,009.59 <p /></td><td><p />                             1,508.24 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Weighted average number of equity shares<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                26,107,941 <p /></td><td><p />                        26,107,941 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Par value per share<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p />                           10.00 <p /></td><td><p />                                   10.00 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Earnings per share<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                           11.53 <p /></td><td><p />                                      5.78 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>To the Members of </p><p /><p>BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED </p><p>Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements </p><p /><p>Opinion </p><p>We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates listed in Annexure I (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). </p><p>In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. </p><p>Basis for Opinion </p><p>We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. </p><p>Key Audit Matters </p><p>Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>Other Information</p><p>The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. </p><p>Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.</p><p>If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. Based on above we state that: -</p>

<p />
As considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of foreign subsidiaries/local associates, the financial statements/financial information have not been audited by us. These financial statements/ financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries/associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
<p /><p />
With regards to above mention foreign subsidiaries company, two subsidiaries whose financial statements and other financial information have been prepared and audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The holding company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
<p /><p />
We have audited these conversion adjustment made by the holding company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the holding company and audited by us.
<p /><p />
We did not audit the financial statement of one associates whose financial statements reflects total assets of Rs. 25,33,66,800/- (P.Y: of Rs. 25,45,88,055/-) and net assets of Rs. 24,70,93,700/- (P.Y: 24,89,91,402/- as at 31st March-2022, total revenue of Rs. 6,07,900/-(P. Y: 5,10,026/- for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.
<p /><p />
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.
<p /><p>Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements </p><p>The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each entity and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.</p><p>In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.</p><p>The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each entity.</p><p>Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements </p><p>Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.</p><p>As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: </p><p>Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.</p><p>Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the entity has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. </p>

<p />
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
<p /><p />
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group (Holding company and subsidiaries) to cease to continue as a going concern.
<p /><p />
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
<p /><p />
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities. 
<p /><p>We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. </p><p>We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. </p><p>We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. </p><p>From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. </p><p>Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements </p><p>As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that: </p>

<p />
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
<p /><p />
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
<p /><p />
The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
<p /><p />
In our opinion, read with “Other Matter” the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Accounting Standard (AS) – 30 on ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
<p /><p />
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, as on 31 March 2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of respective companies, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
<p /><p />
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.
<p /><p />
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
<p /><p>


<p />
There are no pending litigations on the consolidated financial position as on 31st march 2022.
<p /><p /><p />
There is no provision required to be made, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 
<p /><p /><p />
There has been no requirement to transfer amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2022.
<p /><p> </p><p />
The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
<p /><p> </p><p />
The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
<p /><p> </p><p />
Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 
<p /><p /><p />
The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><p /><p>For AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.</p><p>Chartered Accountants</p><p>F.R.No. 317224E</p><p /><p> </p><p>SAKET SANGANERIA, FCA Place: Mumbai </p><p>Partner Date: 2nd September 2022</p><p>I.C.A.I. M. No. 300679</p><p /><p />UDIN: 22300679BALUKL1844</p><p /><p>Annexure I: </p><p>List of Subsidiaries consolidated as at 31 March 2022</p><table><tbody><tr><td>

<p />
Krypton Intra Private Limited</td></tr><tr><td><p />
Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</td></tr><tr><td><p />
Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</td></tr><tr><td><p />
Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited</td></tr><tr><td><p />
B&K Securities Limited UK</td></tr><tr><td><p />
B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore
</td></tr></tbody></table><p /><p>List of Associates as at 31 March 2022</p>

<p />
M. M. MURARKA SHARE & SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
<p /><p />

<p /><p>Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report</p><p>Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) </p><p>In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) as of 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are incorporated in India as of that date. </p><p>Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls </p><p>The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding company and its subsidiaries, which are incorporated in India, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective entity’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. </p><p>Auditor’s Responsibility </p><p>Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. </p><p>Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. </p><p>We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial control system with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India. </p><p>Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements </p><p>A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; Consolidated Financial Statements provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. </p><p>Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements </p><p>Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. </p><p>Opinion </p><p>In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.</p><p>For AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.</p><p>Chartered Accountants</p><p>F.R.No. 317224E</p><p /><p> </p><p>SAKET SANGANERIA, FCA Place: Mumbai </p><p>Partner Date: 2nd September 2022</p><p>I.C.A.I. M. No. 300679</p><p><p />UDIN: 22300679BALUKL1844</p><p>  </p>
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